
From: 38(1)b  

Sent: 26/07/2023 08:49 

To: 38(1)b; 38(1)b ; 38(1)b; 38(1)b 

Subject: Smoked fish - updated guidance 

 

Dear , 

 

As you may be aware, Food Standards Scotland (FSS) and the Food Standards 

Agency commissioned a joint risk assessment in response to an ongoing outbreak of 

Listeria monocytogenes linked to ready-to-eat smoked fish. We have established 

that the risks associated with this bacteria in cold smoked and cured fish products 

make them unsafe to people who are at higher risk of Listeria infection. 

 

We are contacting you to tell you we will be publishing updated advice and the 

supporting evidence package on Thursday 27 July. We know that you had 

expressed an interest in seeing the news story pre-publication – I have attached a 

close to final draft, if you can please not share this out with PHS colleagues.  

 

Updated advice 

The risk assessment found that while the risk of contracting listeriosis in higher risk 

individuals from cold-smoked fish is low, the severity of the illness is high, with the 

potential for severe illness, hospitalisation, and death among higher risk groups. As a 

result, we are advising pregnant women and those with weakened immune systems 

(people with certain underlying conditions for example cancer, diabetes, liver and 

kidney disease), or anyone taking medications which can weaken the immune 

system to avoid eating ready-to-eat cold smoked or cured fish products. 

 

As the risk of serious illness from listeriosis increases with age, older people should 

also be aware of the risk of eating cold-smoked and cured fish and consider taking 

steps to reduce listeria infection. These steps include: eating foods before the use by 

dates, ensuring the product is kept refrigerated (below 5°C) or using safer 

alternatives which we will outline on the Listeria section of our website once 

published.  

 

This targeted advice recognises that most people who are affected by listeriosis will 

get mild gastroenteritis symptoms which subside in a few days. However, certain 

individuals are at higher risk of severe illness. 

 

Cold smoked fish and alternatives  

‘Cold-smoked’ fish such as smoked salmon or trout, and cured fish such as gravlax, 

are not fully cooked during the production process to kill any listeria that may be 

present, and therefore pose a higher risk of infection. ‘Cold-smoked’ fish is normally 

labelled as ‘smoked’ fish on packaging or can be sold as ready-to-eat smoked 

https://www.food.gov.uk/listeria


salmon or trout slices for eating cold without further preparation. It may also be found 

in sushi.  

  

If the cold smoked fish is thoroughly cooked, it will be safe to eat, and can be served 

immediately, or served cold after being chilled in the fridge.    

  

We will be advising that if people wish to add cold-smoked fish to dishes like cooked 

pasta or scrambled eggs, that they thoroughly cook it first. This is because simply 

warming it through when preparing a meal will not heat the fish to a high enough 

temperature to kill any listeria present.  

   

Alternative smoked fish products may be safely consumed, including tinned smoked 

fish (straight from the tin), thoroughly cooked fish fillets (fresh or frozen) and cooked 

smoked fish (e.g. as part of a gratin). These products are heated to a high 

temperature either during production or cooking, killing any listeria that may be 

present.  

 

How you can help 

We would appreciate any support you can give us in sharing our news story with 

your audience when we publish on Thursday 27 July. 

  

We will be creating a toolkit you can use (if applicable) to help communicate this 

message and this will include suggested social media text and accompanying 

assets, a video which explains the updated guidance and suggested text you can 

use if you have listeria information on your website. We will share this in the coming 

weeks.  

 

Thank you for your support with this, you can find more information on listeria on our 

website.  
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